
 

 
Neighbors working together to ensure Big Lagoon Community Service District's               

water needs are met today, tomorrow, and into the future. 

 
BIG LAGOON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

PO Box 847 Trinidad, CA 95570     boardsecretary@biglagooncsd.org 

REGULAR Bi-MONTHLY BOARD MEETING AGENDA     
  
The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Big Lagoon CSD will be held 
Saturday, March 18,2023 at 10:00 a.m. in the Big Lagoon Elementary School 
Community Room. Humboldt County Dept of Health is allowing in-person 
attendance at public meetings.  Masks and social distancing guidelines are no 
longer in effect and California has rescinded all temporary Covid protocols.  
 
The public may submit written comments or questions on any agenda item to the 
Board at: boardsecretary@biglagooncsd.org up until noon on Friday January 27, 
2023 or comment on an agenda item when the Chair invites public comment. The 
Information Packet for this meeting is attached to this emailed Agenda. You can 
request the Packet by emailing: boardsecretary@biglagooncsd.org. 

1.  Chair’s Call to Order (Greg) 
Please address all public comments to the full Board. Per the Rules of Parliamentary 
Procedure members of the public do not engage in discussions or dialogues with 
the governing Board. The purpose of public comments is to inform the Board about 
your views.  Public Participants are invited to address the Board at the start of the 
meeting, and at the start of every Agenda Item. There will be a time limit of three 
(3) minutes per person per Item. Any discussion of an Agenda Item will involve 
Board members only. Having the public comment before an Agenda Item gives a 
Board or Staff member the opportunity to incorporate the public’s concerns in their 
report if they choose to do so.   
 

mailto:boardsecretary@biglagooncsd.org
mailto:boardsecretary@biglagooncsd.org
mailto:boardsecretary@biglagooncsd.org


If there are issues that demand more public input, or dialogue with the Board, then 
the Board may schedule a Stakeholder’s Q&A at a future date. Thank you for 
attending and sharing your thoughts with us. 
  
2. Agenda for March 18 ,2023 - Comments / Amend / Approval (Greg) 
        
3.  Public Comment: Any member of the public may address the Board on any item 
that is not on the agenda at this time. Per the Brown Act, the Board does not act 
upon, respond to, or comment on the merits of any item presented. (Greg) 
 
4. Recognize Public Correspondence received by noon on March 17,2023. (Greg) 
  
5. January 28 ,2023 Unapproved Minutes - Comments / Amend / Approval (Greg) 
  
REPORTS (The public may comment before each report is given) 
6.   Chair’s report (Greg) 
       6.1 Appointment process/Vacancy notice/Gus letter (Addendum #1)  
  
       6.2 Form 700 Reminder for Dick (exit), Chuck & Louise-2022, Gus (2022 plus 
exit) (Addendum #2))                  
      
       6.3 Cross connection/backflow testing policy update and procedure  
(Addendum #3) .  (Vote)  
       6.4 Physical & electronic record retention/storage -policy/procedure. (Greg) 
(Addendum #4) (Vote)  
        
 7. Vice-Chair’s Report (Gus) 
        7.1 Meter Box Project update- including report from Joey Blaine  (Addendums   
#12 & #13) 
        7.3 Generator Grant Applications (Coast Central update potentially)  
        7.4 Surplus asset disposal, shed, old meters, boxes.  (vote) (Addendum #14) 
     
8. Treasurer’s Report- Jan/Feb Financials (Addendum #5)  
         8.1 Auditor proposal update   
         8.2 Collecting on past-due accounts update  
         8.3 Final form letters for Shut Off Notice and Door Hanger- after attorney    
review (Addendum #6)    



         8.4 Billing and finances software update  
       
9.  Community Input Survey- Results review. (Addendum #7) (Greg)   
 
10.   Drought Emergency Conservation Measures Update (Chuck/Catherine) 
(Addendum #8) (vote) 
 
11.     Water Operator’s Report (Val) 
           11.1 Gravel or road repairs necessary for well access road (vote)   
           11.2 Testing of well site for water quality at BLES. Do not exceed budget of 
(?) (Vote).     
           
12.  Meter Readers Report (Dana) 
 
13.  Consideration of lot #41 sale from Sheila Cruson- Item cannot be considered 
due to Fair Political Practices Committee Guidelines that there is no quorum 
available to consider the proposal as 3 Board Members live within 500 feet of lot 
#41. (Addendum #9) .    (Greg)  
 
14. Presentation from Sheila Cruson in regards to out of pocket undergrounding of 
utility expenses in regards to building of 97 Roundhouse Creek Road and 
undergrounding that did not occur to Lot #41. - Is BLCSD interested in taking a 
position on this issue and providing guidance?  (Addendum #10) (Catherine) (Vote)  
 
15.  Updating email distribution list for BLCSD correspondence. Sent with March 
billing.  Will resend with May billing as many households had credit bills for the last 
billing.  (Addendum #11)  (Mara)  
 
16. Future agenda items from board members 
 
17. ADJOURN   

 
 
 
 
Meeting Packet Documents 
 



Unapproved Minutes from 01/28/23 Meeting 
 
Addendum #1- Board vacancy  
Addendum #2- Form 700 communication 
Addendum #3- Backflow documents 
Addendum #4- Records Retention Policy 
Addendum #5- Financial Statements 
Addendum #6- Shut off Notices 
Addendum #7- Community Survey 
Addendum #8- Drought documents  
Addendum #9- Lot 41 Communication 
Addendum #10- Sheila Cruson presentation  
Addendum #11- Customer data form 
Addendum #12- Electronic meters summary documents 
Addendum #13- Badger Software Program update  
Addendum #14- Surplus asset disposal policy  
 
 
 













BIG	LAGOON	COMMMUNITY	SERVICES	DISTRICT	
UNAPPROVED	MINUTES	of	the	Regular	Monthly	Board	Meeting		
Saturday	January	28,	2023	at	10	AM	-	Big	Lagoon	Elementary	School	Community	Room		
	
1.	Chair’s	Call	to	Order	(Greg)	
The	regular	meeting	of	the	Big	Lagoon	Community	Services	District	convened	at	10	AM.	
Board	members	in	attendance:	Greg	Sidoroff,	Chair;	Gus	Satein,	Vice-Chair;		
Louise	Minor,	Treasurer;	Chuck	King,	Director;	Catherine	Munsee,	Director	
Staff	in	attendance:	Val	Castellano,	Water	Operator;	Dana	Hope,	Meter	Reader;		
Mara	Friedman,	Secretary;	Joey	Blaine,	Technology	Staff	
Community	members	in	attendance:	M.	Coakley,	D.	Maier,	C.	Maier,	R.	Wilson,	P.	Wilson,	
T.Woodruff,	D.	Woodruff,	J.	Donohoe,	S.	Cruson,	J.	
	
2.	Agenda	for	January	28,	2023	–	Comments	/	Amend	/	Approval	(Greg)	
There	were	no	changes	to	the	agenda.	Agenda	is	approved	as	distributed	by	Greg.	
	
3.	Public	Comment	
There	was	no	public	comment.	
	
4.	Recognize	Public	Correspondence	received	by	noon	on	January	27,	2023	(Greg)	
All	correspondence	received	has	been	emailed	to	and	shared	with	all	members	of	our	district.	
	
5.	December	17,	2022	Unapproved	Minutes	–	Comments	/	Amend	/Approval	(Greg)	
There	were	no	changes	to	the	minutes.	Minutes	are	approved	as	distributed	by	Greg.	
	
REPORTS		
6.	Staffing	(Greg)	
	 6.1	Add	Richard	(Dick)	Maier	to	staff	as	Accountant	(Vote)	
Dick	has	offered	be	our	volunteer	accountant	and	will	support	Louise,	our	new	Treasurer.		
His	14	years	of	knowledge	as	Treasurer	will	be	a	great	help.	Gratitude	was	expressed	for	Dick’s	
willingness	to	continue	supporting	BLCSD.	
	 MOTION	made	to	appoint	Richard	(Dick)	Maier	to	staff	as	Accountant.	
	 Motion:	Chuck,	Second:	Gus	–	Motion	Approved:	5	ayes,	0	nays	
	 6.2	Add	new	position	for	current	staff	member	Dana	Hope:	Community	Liaison	(Vote)	
Dana	has	agreed	to	step	into	our	new	staff	position	of	‘Community	Liaison’.	This	position	is	
giving	Dana	an	official	title	for	the	networking	she	already	does	for	BLCSD.	Gratitude	was	
expressed	for	Dana’s	valuable	role	in	our	community.	
	 MOTION	made	to	appoint	Dana	Hope	to	new	staff	position	of	Community	Liaison.	
	 Motion:	Gus,	Second:	Chuck	–	Motion	Approved:	5	ayes,	0	nays	
	
	

1/28/2023	Minutes	–	page	1	of	5	



7.	Customer	Appeal	of	outstanding	water	bill	#181	Oceanview	(Greg)	(Vote)	
Greg	reported	that	at	10:17	PM	last	night,	he	and	Mara	received	an	email	with	an	attached	
document	from	the	previous	tenants	of	#181	Oceanview.	Per	the	previous	tenants	request,	
upon	arrival	to	the	meeting	each	Board	member	was	presented	with	a	printed	copy	of	the	
email	and	the	attachment	by	Mara.	The	Board	members	were	instructed	to	review	the	
communication	but	have	no	discussion	of	it	until	the	agenda	item	came	up	during	the	meeting.	
Because	the	Public	Comment	deadline	of	noon	Friday	had	passed,	in	order	to	be	Brown	Act	
compliant	for	this	unique	circumstance,	the	email	portion	of	the	document	was	read	aloud.	
The	attachment	was	not,	as	it	was	labeled	“confidential”.	Ten	days	ago,	the	entire	Board	
received	information	from	our	attorney	pertaining	to	this	outstanding	bill.	Discussion	followed	
regarding	how	the	Board	would	like	to	proceed	with	this	issue.	It	was	confirmed	that	in	some	
previous	arrearages,	the	Board	has	waived	finance	charges	and	penalty	fees.	There	was	further	
Board	discussion	and	it	was	decided	that	a	counter-offer	will	be	sent	by	1/31/2023	to	the	
previous	tenants,	with	a	payment	due	date	of	March	13,	2023.	If	the	bill	is	not	paid	by	the	
deadline,	then	the	Board	will	discuss	collection	options	at	the	03/18/23	meeting.	
	 MOTION	made	to	present	a	counter	proposal	of	$1822.10	(base	amount	of	outstanding	
	 water	bill,	minus	all	late	fees	&	penalties)	to	the	previous	tenants	of	#181	Oceanview.	
	 Payment	is	due	in	full	no	later	than	March	13th.	
	 Motion:	Louise,	Second:	Gus	–	Motion	Approved:	5	ayes,	0	nays	
	
8.	Vice-Chair’s	Report	(Gus)	
Phase	1	of	the	Meter	Box	Project	is	50%	complete.	Phase	2	is	100%	complete.	Phase	3	starting	
next	week.	
	 8.1	Meter	Box	Project	update	-	revise	2023	budget	by	$20K	as	‘not	to	exceed’	number	
	 to	finish.	(Vote)	
Total	expenses	for	this	project	to	date	are	apprx		$41K.	Gus	estimates	apprx.	$6k	more	
expenses	and	he	would	like	to	increase	the	budget	by	$20K.	
	 MOTION	made	to	revise	the	2023	budget	for	the	Meter	Box	Project:	increase	by	$20K	
	 (not	to	exceed).	
	 Motion:	Chuck,	Second:	Catherine	–	Motion	Approved:	5	ayes,	0	nays	
	 8.2	Generator	Grant	Application	
Grant	Application	Coordinator	hopes	to	make	a	determination	by	mid	February.	If	we	don’t	
receive	this	grant,	we	will	submit	for	another	grant.	
	 8.3	School	Pipeline	(no	update)	
	 8.4	Water	Storage	Grant	Application	
Gus	and	Greg	expressed	appreciation	for	the	tremendous	amount	of	work	Bill	did	toward	this	
grant	project.	Out	of	24	total	applicants,	11	received	approval.	BLCSD	ranked	17	out	of	24.	
	
9.	Treasurer’s	Report	–	2022	Year-end	reports	(Louise)	
No	comments	

	 	
1/28/2023	Minutes	–	page	2	of	5	



	 9.1	Auditor	proposal	update	(Vote)	
Louise	noted	that	we	need	an	auditor	report	to	receive	future	possible	funding.	
	 MOTION	made	to	send	request	to	RCAC	to	fund	audit	for	2022	year	only.	
	 Motion:	Catherine,	Second:	Chuck	–	Motion	Approved:	5	ayes,	0	nays	
	 9.2	Collecting	on	past-due	accounts	update	
Our	total	arrears	were	$14K.	All	accounts	have	been	paid	in	full	except	one	customer		
(#181	Oceanview).	Our	new	collections	policy	(adopted	5/21/22)	states	that	the	Treasurer	is	
authorized	to	work	with	each	overdue	customer	regarding	arrears.	
	 	 9.21	Proposed	updates	to	BLCSD	Collections	Policy	(Vote)	
The	proposed	changes	to	the	policy	were	discussed	as	submitted	in	the	addendum.	There	was	
an	additional	change	to	Page	4	item	#1	that	states:	All	written	appeal	materials	not	presented	
by	the	appellant	at	the	time	of	the	appeal	must	be	received	no	later	than	72	hours	in	advance	
of	the	appeal	meeting	for	proper	Board	consideration.	
	 MOTION	made	to	accept	proposed	updates	to	BLCSD	Collections	Policy.	
	 Motion:	Catherine,	Second:	Gus	–	Motion	Approved:	5	ayes,	0	nays	
	 	 9.22	Proposed	form	letters	for	Shut	Off	Notice	and	Door	Hanger	(Vote)	
	 MOTION	made	to	send	proposed	form	letters	for	Shut	Off	Notice	and	Door			 	
	 Hanger	to	our	attorney	for	review.	
	 Motion:	Catherine,	Second:	Gus	–	Motion	Approved:	5	ayes,	0	nays	
	 9.3	Billing	and	finances	software	update	
The	free	4-month	test	trial	of	the	new	software	ends	on	4/30.	The	software	is	designed	for	a	
large	district	and	doesn’t	work	well	for	us.	Instead	of	using	this	software,	we	will	most	likely	
use	a	spreadsheet.	Joey	will	help	Louise	and	Dick	set	up	the	spreadsheet	in	the	next	month.	
	 9.4	Approve	increase	in	2023	budget	for	propane	from	$472.69	to	$2250	(Vote)	
Due	to	more	frequent	power	outages,	our	usage	of	propane	has	increased	and	we	need	to	
increase	our	propane	budget	allowance.		
	 MOTION	made	to	approve	2023	budget	increase	for	propane	from	$472.69	to	$2250.	
	 Motion:	Catherine,	Second:	Gus	–	Motion	Approved:	5	ayes,	0	nays	
	
10.	Community	Input	Survey	–	Revised,	Implementation	Process	(Greg)	(Vote)	
Louise	suggested	that	we	allow	2	votes	per	address.	Greg	reported	that	he	and	Mara	discussed	
the	survey	and	concluded	the	best	way	to	get	good	input	would	be	via	the	website.	He	noted	
that	he	made	a	few	changes	to	the	original	survey	to	simplify.	He	will	work	with	Joey	to	post	
the	revised	survey	on	our	website,	hopefully	within	3	weeks.	Mara	will	send	an	email	to	our	
customers	to	encourage	all	to	vote.	Survey	results	will	be	discussed	at	our	next	meeting.		
	 MOTION	made	to	revise	proposed	Community	Input	Survey	to	2	votes	per	service	
	 address.		
	 Motion:	Catherine,	Second:	Chuck	–	Motion	Approved:	4	ayes,	1	nay	Greg	
	

	
1/28/2023	Minutes	–	page	3	of	5	

	



11.	Water	Operator’s	Report	(Val)	
We	are	pumping	apprx.	4K	gallons/day,	which	is	normal	for	this	time	of	year.	We	pumped	a	lot	
less	water	when	power	was	out.	We	are	doing	good	and	are	finding	leaks.	
	 11.1	Backup	generator	issues	during	recent	outages	
Val	reported	that	a	new	alternator	was	installed	last	week	and	suggested	that	perhaps	we	
don’t	need	a	new	generator	at	this	time.	We	will	need	a	new	generator	if	our	main	circuit	
board	fails.	Our	well	pumps	are	doing	OK.		
	 11.2	New	Drought	and	Conservation	Technical	Reporting	Order	
Val	reported	that	currently	our	water	supply	is	stable.	He	has	filled	out	the	new	report	and	will	
continue	to	do	so	monthly.	
	
12.	Drought	Emergency	Conservation	Measures	Update	(Chuck)	
Chuck	read	out	loud	the	CWRCB	water	conservation	restrictions	for	all	of	California	through	
12/31/2023.	Catherine	is	assisting	Chuck	on	this	committee.	She	and	Margie	are	working	on	a	
survey	document	that	they	plan	to	present	at	the	next	meeting	for	Board	review.		
	
13.	Meter	Readers	Report	(Dana)	
Dana	will	read	the	meters	in	March	and	will	continue	to	read	by	hand	until	instructed	
otherwise.	If	anyone	is	interested	in	assisting	Dana,	please	contact	her.	Due	to	the	new	mat	
type	rodent	barriers,	the	new	meters	are	completely	clean	and	much	easier	to	read.	Gus	
acknowledged	Bill	for	his	research	on	the	mat	material.	
	
14.	Electronic	Legacy	Document	Storage	(Greg	&	Joey)	(Vote)	
Greg	and	Louise	culled	through	many	boxes	of	BLCSD	documents	and	determined	which	were	
of	primary	importance.	Greg	contacted	Joey	about	creating	a	portal	on	our	website	where	
anyone	can	access	these	documents.	Joey	could	use	help	with	his	web-master	duties.	Dick	
thinks	the	Board	should	determine	how	long	we	retain	our	accounting	records.	Seven	years	is	
the	requirement	and	it	would	be	advisable	to	purge	older	accounting	documents.	
	 MOTION	made	to	move	forward	with	the	Electronic	Legacy	Document	Storage	project.		
	 Motion:	Gus,	Second:	Catherine	–	Motion	Approved:	5	ayes,	0	nays	
	 14.1	Physical	&	electronic	record	retention/storage	–	policy/procedure.	
	 CSDA	has	numerous	examples	–	Greg	to	present	proposal	at	3/18/23	meeting	
	
15.	CSDA	Training	Classes	Required	and	Recommended	–	Discussion	
Greg	reported	that	he	took	3	training	classes,	2	of	which	are	required	for	all	Board	members	
every	2	years	(Ethics	and	Sexual	Harassment).	These	required	classes	are	optional	for	staff.	He	
also	took	a	3-hour	Brown	Act	class	and	suggested	that	the	other	Board	members	also	take	the		
training	as	a	lot	of	valuable	information	is	provided.	All	online	classes	are	free.	Greg	is	the	
recipient	of	all	certifications	of	completion	and	he	requested	that	Board	members	keep	
current	with	the	required	training.	

	
1/28/2023	Minutes	–	page	4	of	5	



16.	Policy	for	request	of	use	of	District	Emails	for	non-District	business/communications	
(Greg/Mara)	(Vote)	
After	discussion,	it	was	decided	that	the	BLCSD	email	list	is	confidential	and	cannot	be	used	for		
any	communications	outside	of	Board	business.	Dana	mentioned	that	perhaps	a	separate		
(opt-in)	Community	Communications	list	be	created.	Mara	will	help	Dana	with	this.	
	 MOTION	made	clarifying	that	the	BLCSD	Email	list	can	only	be	used	for	BLCSD	related	
	 business.	
	 Motion:	Catherine,	Second:	Gus	–	Motion	Approved:	5	ayes,	0	nays	
	
17.	Coast	Central	Credit	Union	Grant	Opportunity	(Greg)	–	Discussion	
This	potential	grant	application	brought	to	our	attention	by	Dana	looks	promising.	Greg	
proposed	that	if	we	don’t	receive	the	generator	grant	from	the	State	by	mid	February,		
we	should	apply	for	this	grant.		
	
18.	Future	agenda	items	from	board	members	
Catherine	would	like	the	Board	to	consider	the	pros/cons	of	purchasing	lot	41		
(98	Roundhouse	Creek).	She	invited	Sheila	to	make	a	presentation	as	to	why	the	lot	would	be	
of	value	to	the	District.	Greg	suggested	an	on-site	review	meeting	first.	This	item	will	be	added	
to	the	March	18,	2023	agenda.	
	
	In	answer	to	Sheila’s	request	regarding	reimbursement	for	the	back-flow	device	she	installed,	
Gus	responded	that	since	2019,	the	Humboldt	Building	Department	has	required	back-flow	
prevention	valves	to	be	installed	for	all	new	construction.	He	also	clarified	that	BLCSD	is	not	
installing	back-flow	devices	free	of	charge	for	our	customers,	but	we	are	installing	water	shut-
off	valves	free	of	charge.	
	
Gus	asked	Val	if	he	thought	that	more	gravel	needs	to	be	laid	on	the	well	access	road?	If	so,	we	
can	organize	a	work	party.	Val	will	give	a	cost	estimate	at	the	next	meeting.	
	
In	response	to	Sheila’s	concerns	regarding	underground	utilities	not	being	included	on	two	of	
her	properties,	Catherine	suggested	that	this	issue	be	placed	on	a	future	agenda	to	see	how	
BLCSD	might	help	Sheila	remedy	the	situation.	It	was	noted	that	BLCSD	was	formed	after	the	
underground	utilities	were	put	in.	Greg	said	he	will	recuse	himself	from	this	discussion	if	
pursued.	This	item	will	be	added	to	the	March	18,	2023	agenda.	
	
19.	ADJOURN	
With	no	other	business,	the	Chair	adjourned	the	meeting	at	12:33	PM.	
The	next	regular	meeting	will	be	Saturday,	March	18,	2023	at	10	AM	in	the	Big	Lagoon	School	
Community	Room.		
Submitted	by	Mara	Friedman,	Board	Secretary	
	

1/28/2023	Minutes	–	page	5	of	5 



















































First off a big thank you to Joey for getting the survey online for the District and sending me the raw data minus the respondents addresses.  Could not have 

done it without his help.  

We received 32 responses in total.  However, 7 of the responses did not follow the directions well and filled in multiple answers in the same category with 

the same number.  The good news is that after analyzing the data with and without these 7 surveys included there is almost no change in the total results. 

The 7 surveys in question are highlighted in Orange.  

The spreadsheet contains the following tabs at the bottom:

Notes

Community Input survey- this is all of the data with numeric analysis

Graphs- this is the data with the 7 in question surveys removed  graphed

Survey Comments- these are the comments received at the bottom of the surveys

ADJ Worksheet- this is the worksheet I used to formulate the totals when removing the 7 in question surveys 

I used 3 statistical methods of analysis:

1) Average- This is the average score for each question.  Keep in mind the lower the number the higher in importance per survey respondents.

2) Rank-  This is the rank in numeric order of the averages for each question vs the other questions in that category. 

3) Mode-  The mode is the most common response number for a particular question.  Mode is a highly recognized way of analyzing data to see which 

question was deemed most important to least important per survey respondent.  

I tried to keep inserting the questions throughout the data so it would be easy to see which question the data referred to.  For those of you familiar with 

Excell the freeze pane function where you can scroll did not work effectively for me on these worksheets.  In regards to the graphs, I did my best with them 

as it's been awhile since I've done graphs but they do provide a good visual.  I tried to insert some guidance as to what each was referring to and again 

inserted the questions multiple times for your reference.  Be sure to put the sizing to full screen and scroll to the bottom of each tab when viewing. 



Review & 

Update By-

Laws of 

the CSD

o   Update 

of all 

Policies 

and 

Procedure

s

Conduct a 

Pros-Cons 

Analysis of 

annexation 

options for 

properties 

receiving 

services but 

not 

currently 

within the 

district 

boundaries. 

3 homes 

Plus Big 

Lagoon 

Elementary 

School

Compreh

ensive 

rate 

study- 

Prepare 

for 

future 

needs. 

(Propose

d to be 

done by 

RCAC)

o   

Potential 

for tiered 

pricing 

(higher 

prices 

charged 

after a 

set usage 

allowanc

e) 

Emergency 

Response 

Plan- Who, 

What, 

Where, 

When 

o   

Emergency 

Operation

al Plan- 

What if 

the district 

cannot 

supply 

water? 

o   

Customer 

awareness 

training 

for 

developing 

their own 

emergency 

Written 

SOPs 

(Standard 

Operating 

Procedures) 

for all 

volunteer 

tasks

o   Water 

testing at 

home sites 

o   Web site 

maintenanc

e 

o   

Electronic 

meter 

reading 

o   

Accounting 

reports and 

filings 

Succession 

plan for 

water 

operator

Comprehensiv

e drought 

awareness, 

training and 

operating plan

Create a 

comprehensive 

Public Information 

system to include: 

o    Emergency 

Alert System and 

procedures 

o    Customer / 

Rate Payer 

â€œFacts to 

Knowâ€• about the 

Big Lagoon CSD 

and being a 

customer/resident

o    Terms of use 

agreement 

o    State laws 

governing the CSD 

and public water 

systems

Increased 

water 

storage 

capacity in 

order to:

o    Meet 

minimum 

fire flow 

requirement

s

o    Currently 

only an 

approximate 

2-day supply 

of 

emergency 

storage 

Pursue 

drilling a 

backup 

well 

o    

Current 

backup 

well 

does not 

produce 

enough 

to 

supply 

needs 

o    

Potential

ly pursue 

alternate 

well 

sites- 

current 

site may 

not have 

Total 

water 

system 

assessm

ent and 

analysis 

to 

determi

ne:

o    

Vulnera

bilities 

of 

existing 

system

o    Long 

term 

repair 

and 

replace

ment 

Schedul

e 

MOU 

(Memorandum 

of 

Understanding) 

with property 

owner of 

existing well 

site property

Communi

cation 

with 

Green 

Diamond 

Resource 

Co. re: 

School 

property 

to 

potentiall

y develop 

MOU 

with 

GDRC for 

possible 

well site? 

Or 

regarding 

future of 

school 

property.

Replace

ment of 

existing 

above 

ground 

PVC line 

that 

services 

Big 

Lagoon 

School 

Develop 

Capital 

Improve

ment 

funding 

strategy 

plan 

outside 

of rate 

increases

o   

Pursue 

grants 

o   Loans 

ADMIN INFRA

6 4 3 3 4 3 3 4 2 2 2 3 3 2 3 Orange highlighted are not filled out poperly

4 7 5 1 6 2 8 3 4 3 1 2 6 7 5

6 2 4 3 1 1 1 8 1 1 1 1 1 3 1

1 5 3 6 7 8 4 2 1 5 4 6 7 2 3

6 4 8 5 1 2 7 4 3 1 6 7 5 7 7

1 7 3 4 6 2 8 5 1 2 3 4 6 7 5

1 7 3 4 6 2 8 5 1 2 3 4 6 7 5

7 6 3 5 4 2 8 1 4 1 5 2 3 7 6

3 8 1 7 2 4 6 5 3 2 1 4 5 7 6

7 2 1 3 6 5 8 4 1 2 3 7 4 5 6

6 4 1 1 1 2 1 5 2 4 4 1 4 4 4

8 6 7 1 4 1 8 5 1 1 1 5 1 1 1

2 3 6 1 5 4 8 7 1 5 2 4 7 6 3

1 7 8 4 2 3 5 6 1 2 3 6 7 5 4

2 3 4 1 6 4 7 8 1 2 3 4 7 6 5

1 7 3 4 6 2 8 5 3 2 1 4 6 7 5

1 7 3 4 6 2 8 5 3 2 1 4 6 7 5

2 8 1 6 5 3 7 4 2 3 1 4 6 7 5

7 8 4 2 3 1 6 7 1 2 3 4 7 5 6

2 8 1 6 5 3 7 4 2 3 1 4 6 7 5

8 7 3 2 4 1 5 6 2 3 4 5 6 7 1

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

5 8 4 1 3 2 7 6 1 5 3 2 6 7 4

4 7 8 1 5 2 3 6 2 4 3 1 5 6 7

4 4 3 3 4 3 6 5 4 2 3 2 3 2 3

6 5 7 1 3 2 8 4 1 2 3 7 6 4 5

3 8 2 1 4 5 6 7 2 6 1 4 5 3 7

3 1 2 2 6 6 3 5 6 6 6 6 2 4 5

1 5 4 3 6 7 8 2 1 6 3 4 5 2 7

8 1 4 1 6 6 6 3 1 1 1 7 1 1 1

3 8 2 6 4 3 6 5 1 2 3 4 5 7 6

6 4 5 3 7 1 8 2 4 2 6 3 7 1 5

Average 3.94 5.38 3.66 3.00 4.34 2.97 6.03 4.66 2.00 2.72 2.69 3.94 4.84 4.81 4.44

RANK 4 7 3 2 5 1 8 6 1 3 2 4 7 6 5 Low Score is deemed hightest priority by survey

Average 3.68 6.20 3.96 3.28 4.64 2.92 6.88 4.72 1.88 2.80 2.72 4.20 5.60 5.48 4.96 7 Surveys removed due to incorrect answer format

RANK 3 7 4 2 5 1 8 6 1 3 2 4 7 6 5 If data from the incorrect are removed.  No significant changes



MODE 1 7 3 1 6 2 8 5 1 2 3 4 6 7 5 Mode is the most frequent response in the array of data

MODE 1 7 3 1 6 2 8 5 1 2 3 4 6 7 5 Mode with the 7 surveys removed

Questions copied here again for convenience of viewing  as freezing the panes made the worksheet very small. 

Review & 

Update By-

Laws of 

the CSD

o   Update 

of all 

Policies 

and 

Procedure

s

Conduct a 

Pros-Cons 

Analysis of 

annexation 

options for 

properties 

receiving 

services but 

not 

currently 

within the 

district 

boundaries. 

3 homes 

Plus Big 

Lagoon 

Elementary 

School

Compreh

ensive 

rate 

study- 

Prepare 

for 

future 

needs. 

(Propose

d to be 

done by 

RCAC)

o   

Potential 

for tiered 

pricing 

(higher 

prices 

charged 

after a 

set usage 

allowanc

e) 

Emergency 

Response 

Plan- Who, 

What, 

Where, 

When 

o   

Emergency 

Operation

al Plan- 

What if 

the district 

cannot 

supply 

water? 

o   

Customer 

awareness 

training 

for 

developing 

their own 

emergency 

Written 

SOPs 

(Standard 

Operating 

Procedures) 

for all 

volunteer 

tasks

o   Water 

testing at 

home sites 

o   Web site 

maintenanc

e 

o   

Electronic 

meter 

reading 

o   

Accounting 

reports and 

filings 

Succession 

plan for 

water 

operator

Comprehensiv

e drought 

awareness, 

training and 

operating plan

Create a 

comprehensive 

Public Information 

system to include: 

o    Emergency 

Alert System and 

procedures 

o    Customer / 

Rate Payer 

â€œFacts to 

Knowâ€• about the 

Big Lagoon CSD 

and being a 

customer/resident

o    Terms of use 

agreement 

o    State laws 

governing the CSD 

and public water 

systems

Increased 

water 

storage 

capacity in 

order to:

o    Meet 

minimum 

fire flow 

requirement

s

o    Currently 

only an 

approximate 

2-day supply 

of 

emergency 

storage 

Pursue 

drilling a 

backup 

well 

o    

Current 

backup 

well 

does not 

produce 

enough 

to 

supply 

needs 

o    

Potential

ly pursue 

alternate 

well 

sites- 

current 

site may 

not have 

Total 

water 

system 

assessm

ent and 

analysis 

to 

determi

ne:

o    

Vulnera

bilities 

of 

existing 

system

o    Long 

term 

repair 

and 

replace

ment 

Schedul

e 

MOU 

(Memorandum 

of 

Understanding) 

with property 

owner of 

existing well 

site property

Communi

cation 

with 

Green 

Diamond 

Resource 

Co. re: 

School 

property 

to 

potentiall

y develop 

MOU 

with 

GDRC for 

possible 

well site? 

Or 

regarding 

future of 

school 

property.

Replace

ment of 

existing 

above 

ground 

PVC line 

that 

services 

Big 

Lagoon 

School 

Develop 

Capital 

Improve

ment 

funding 

strategy 

plan 

outside 

of rate 

increases

o   

Pursue 

grants 

o   Loans 



The first number on the bar is the question it refers to, the second is the score. The lower the score the higher the importance per the survey respondents.  

In this example for Administrative,  Question 1 had a cumulative average response of 3.68For Inrasturture Question 1 had  and cumultive average response of 1.88.

Average 3.68 6.20 3.96 3.28 4.64 2.92 6.88 4.72 1.88 2.80 2.72 4.20 5.60 5.48 4.96 Average with 7 surveys removed

DATA

Question # 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Review & 

Update 

By-Laws 

of the 

CSD

o   

Update 

of all 

Policies 

and 

Procedur

es

Conduct 

a Pros-

Cons 

Analysis 

of 

annexati

on 

options 

for 

propertie

s 

receiving 

services 

but not 

currently 

within 

the 

district 

boundari

es. 3 

homes 

Plus Big 

Lagoon 

Comprehe

nsive rate 

study- 

Prepare 

for future 

needs. 

(Proposed 

to be 

done by 

RCAC)

o   

Potential 

for tiered 

pricing 

(higher 

prices 

charged 

after a set 

usage 

allowance

) 

o   Annual 

rate 

Emergenc

y 

Response 

Plan- 

Who, 

What, 

Where, 

When 

o   

Emergenc

y 

Operation

al Plan- 

What if 

the 

district 

cannot 

supply 

water? 

o   

Customer 

awareness 

training 

Written 

SOPs 

(Standard 

Operatin

g 

Procedur

es) for all 

volunteer 

tasks

o   Water 

testing at 

home 

sites 

o   Web 

site 

maintena

nce 

o   

Electronic 

meter 

reading 

o   

Accountin

Successio

n plan 

for water 

operator

Compreh

ensive 

drought 

awarene

ss, 

training 

and 

operatin

g plan

Create a 

comprehen

sive Public 

Informatio

n system 

to include: 

o    

Emergency 

Alert 

System 

and 

procedures 

o    

Customer / 

Rate Payer 

â€œFacts 

to Knowâ€• 

about the 

Big Lagoon 

CSD and 

being a 

customer/r

esident

Increased 

water 

storage 

capacity 

in order 

to:

o    Meet 

minimum 

fire flow 

requirem

ents

o    

Currently 

only an 

approxim

ate 2-day 

supply of 

emergenc

y storage 

Pursue 

drilling 

a 

backup 

well 

o    

Current 

backup 

well 

does 

not 

produc

e 

enough 

to 

supply 

needs 

o    

Potenti

ally 

pursue 

alterna

te well 

Total 

water 

system 

assess

ment 

and 

analysis 

to 

determ

ine:

o    

Vulnera

bilities 

of 

existing 

system

o    

Long 

term 

repair 

and 

replace

ment 

MOU 

(Memo

randum 

of 

Unders

tanding

) with 

propert

y 

owner 

of 

existing 

well 

site 

propert

y

Commu

nicatio

n with 

Green 

Diamon

d 

Resour

ce Co. 

re: 

School 

propert

y to 

potenti

ally 

develo

p MOU 

with 

GDRC 

for 

possibl

e well 

site? Or 

regardi

Replace

ment of 

existing 

above 

ground 

PVC 

line 

that 

service

s Big 

Lagoon 

School 

Develo

p 

Capital 

Improv

ement 

funding 

strateg

y plan 

outside 

of rate 

increas

es

o   

Pursue 

grants 

o   

Loans 

RANK 3 7 4 2 5 1 8 6 1 3 2 4 7 6 5 Rank with 7 surveys removed
DATA

In this  chart for administrative, question #1 had a rank of the 3rd lowest average score. In this chart for Infrastructure, question #1 had a rank of the 1st lowest average score

Review & 

Update 

By-Laws 

of the 

CSD

o   

Update 

of all 

Policies 

and 

Procedur

es

Conduct 

a Pros-

Cons 

Analysis 

of 

annexati

on 

options 

for 

propertie

s 

receiving 

services 

but not 

currently 

within 

the 

district 

boundari

es. 3 

homes 

Plus Big 

Lagoon 

Comprehe

nsive rate 

study- 

Prepare 

for future 

needs. 

(Proposed 

to be 

done by 

RCAC)

o   

Potential 

for tiered 

pricing 

(higher 

prices 

charged 

after a set 

usage 

allowance

) 

o   Annual 

rate 

Emergenc

y 

Response 

Plan- 

Who, 

What, 

Where, 

When 

o   

Emergenc

y 

Operation

al Plan- 

What if 

the 

district 

cannot 

supply 

water? 

o   

Customer 

awareness 

training 

Written 

SOPs 

(Standard 

Operatin

g 

Procedur

es) for all 

volunteer 

tasks

o   Water 

testing at 

home 

sites 

o   Web 

site 

maintena

nce 

o   

Electronic 

meter 

reading 

o   

Accountin

Successio

n plan 

for water 

operator

Compreh

ensive 

drought 

awarene

ss, 

training 

and 

operatin

g plan

Create a 

comprehen

sive Public 

Informatio

n system 

to include: 

o    

Emergency 

Alert 

System 

and 

procedures 

o    

Customer / 

Rate Payer 

â€œFacts 

to Knowâ€• 

about the 

Big Lagoon 

CSD and 

being a 

customer/r

esident

Increased 

water 

storage 

capacity 

in order 

to:

o    Meet 

minimum 

fire flow 

requirem

ents

o    

Currently 

only an 

approxim

ate 2-day 

supply of 

emergenc

y storage 

Pursue 

drilling 

a 

backup 

well 

o    

Current 

backup 

well 

does 

not 

produc

e 

enough 

to 

supply 

needs 

o    

Potenti

ally 

pursue 

alterna

te well 

Total 

water 

system 

assess

ment 

and 

analysis 

to 

determ

ine:

o    

Vulnera

bilities 

of 

existing 

system

o    

Long 

term 

repair 

and 

replace

ment 

MOU 

(Memo

randum 

of 

Unders

tanding

) with 

propert

y 

owner 

of 

existing 

well 

site 

propert

y

Commu

nicatio

n with 

Green 

Diamon

d 

Resour

ce Co. 

re: 

School 

propert

y to 

potenti

ally 

develo

p MOU 

with 

GDRC 

for 

possibl

e well 

site? Or 

regardi

Replace

ment of 

existing 

above 

ground 

PVC 

line 

that 

service

s Big 

Lagoon 

School 

Develo

p 

Capital 

Improv

ement 

funding 

strateg

y plan 

outside 

of rate 

increas

es

o   

Pursue 

grants 

o   

Loans 

MODE 1 7 3 1 6 2 8 5 1 2 3 4 6 7 5 Mode with the 7 surveys removed
DATA

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Average 3.68 6.20 3.96 3.28 4.64 2.92 6.88 4.72

1, 3.68

2, 6.20

3, 3.96

4, 3.28

5, 4.64

6, 2.92

7, 6.88

8, 4.72

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

Average Administrative 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Average 1.88 2.80 2.72 4.20 5.60 5.48 4.96

1, 1.88

2, 2.80 3, 2.72

4, 4.20

5, 5.60 6, 5.48

7, 4.96

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

Average Infrastructure 

Average

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

RANK 3 7 4 2 5 1 8 6

1, 3

2, 7

3, 4

4, 2

5, 5

6, 1

7, 8

8, 6

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Rank Administrative

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Rank 1 3 2 4 7 6 5

1, 1

2, 3

3, 2

4, 4

5, 7

6, 6

7, 5

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Rank Infrastructure

9

MODE ADMIN

8

Mode Infrastructure



The Mode is the most frequent number in an array of numbers.  In this chart, the 1st number on the barIn this chart Question 1, the most common response for it was 1 (most important)

refers to the question number the second number is the mode.  The lower the number the more important

per survey respondents.  For question number 1 the most common response for it was a 1 ( most important)

Question # 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Review & 

Update 

By-Laws 

of the 

CSD

o   

Update 

of all 

Policies 

and 

Procedur

es

Conduct 

a Pros-

Cons 

Analysis 

of 

annexati

on 

options 

for 

propertie

s 

receiving 

services 

but not 

currently 

within 

the 

district 

boundari

es. 3 

homes 

Plus Big 

Lagoon 

Comprehe

nsive rate 

study- 

Prepare 

for future 

needs. 

(Proposed 

to be 

done by 

RCAC)

o   

Potential 

for tiered 

pricing 

(higher 

prices 

charged 

after a set 

usage 

allowance

) 

o   Annual 

rate 

Emergenc

y 

Response 

Plan- 

Who, 

What, 

Where, 

When 

o   

Emergenc

y 

Operation

al Plan- 

What if 

the 

district 

cannot 

supply 

water? 

o   

Customer 

awareness 

training 

Written 

SOPs 

(Standard 

Operatin

g 

Procedur

es) for all 

volunteer 

tasks

o   Water 

testing at 

home 

sites 

o   Web 

site 

maintena

nce 

o   

Electronic 

meter 

reading 

o   

Accountin

Successio

n plan 

for water 

operator

Compreh

ensive 

drought 

awarene

ss, 

training 

and 

operatin

g plan

Create a 

comprehen

sive Public 

Informatio

n system 

to include: 

o    

Emergency 

Alert 

System 

and 

procedures 

o    

Customer / 

Rate Payer 

â€œFacts 

to Knowâ€• 

about the 

Big Lagoon 

CSD and 

being a 

customer/r

esident

Increased 

water 

storage 

capacity 

in order 

to:

o    Meet 

minimum 

fire flow 

requirem

ents

o    

Currently 

only an 

approxim

ate 2-day 

supply of 

emergenc

y storage 

Pursue 

drilling 

a 

backup 

well 

o    

Current 

backup 

well 

does 

not 

produc

e 

enough 

to 

supply 

needs 

o    

Potenti

ally 

pursue 

alterna

te well 

Total 

water 

system 

assess

ment 

and 

analysis 

to 

determ

ine:

o    

Vulnera

bilities 

of 

existing 

system

o    

Long 

term 

repair 

and 

replace

ment 

MOU 

(Memo

randum 

of 

Unders

tanding

) with 

propert

y 

owner 

of 

existing 

well 

site 

propert

y

Commu

nicatio

n with 

Green 

Diamon

d 

Resour

ce Co. 

re: 

School 

propert

y to 

potenti

ally 

develo

p MOU 

with 

GDRC 

for 

possibl

e well 

site? Or 

regardi

Replace

ment of 

existing 

above 

ground 

PVC 

line 

that 

service

s Big 

Lagoon 

School 

Develo

p 

Capital 

Improv

ement 

funding 

strateg

y plan 

outside 

of rate 

increas

es

o   

Pursue 

grants 

o   

Loans 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

MODE 1 7 3 1 6 2 8 5

1, 1

2, 7

3, 3

4, 1

5, 6

6, 2

7, 8

8, 5

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

MODE ADMIN

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

MODE 1 2 3 4 6 7 5

1, 1

2, 2

3, 3

4, 4

5, 6

6, 7

7, 5

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Mode Infrastructure



Please list any other issues you feel the Board needs to address in the Strategic Plan for the next 5 years. State the issue and why it is important to the community that it be addressed. 

Thank you for taking the time to complete this survey!

I'm not sure if this fits under the category of total water system assessment and long term repairs and infrastructure but I believe at some point we will need to address the aging pipes 

underground that bring water to each house. As was evident when we had a leak near 352 Roundhouse Creek Road, the galvanized pipes are old and corroded and have build up inside them 

to the point you could barely see through it. This may be something we might be able to obtain a grant for sometime in the future, unless an emergency happens and we have to address it as 

each emergency pops up.

1)I thought the public information system was already in operation. My experience - it works pretty well now.   2)Does Green Diamond own the school property? Shouldn't funds for further 

development of the school's water system be the responsibility of Humboldt County School Dist, or Green Diamond (If they own the property) ?  Big Lagoon Park residents' water system 

should be considered as well.  3)As this survey states, our water is limited - Is adding 3 more residences, plus the school a good idea at this point? I think these parties should cover the 

additional development costs, rather than the burden be placed on existing BLCSD customers.   I'd like to take this opportunity to thank the many community members that keep fresh water 

flowing from our taps. Your work is greatly appreciated !

Without background information how can community members evaluate some of the options being ranked? For example, how vulnerable the pipe to the school is to failing as it has done 3 

times since the district's formation. Also, two grant applications are being considered for funding. How is this factored into the results? 

Board members should be compensated,in some way, wherher monetarily or a reduction in rate or payment of their water bills. They should not be expected to engage in all the hard work they are doing  for free...

Plan for replacement of infrastructure, physical and fiscal as needed.  Improve fire fighting capacity.

None

Investigating any possible effects of climate change on our water district

Develop community internet communication backup system for routine periods of electric power failure.  This is important for emergency medical contacts, public information alerts, 

maintain ability for folks to work from home, and conduct business (appointments, airline schedules etc)

Fire should be number 1 concern, see how our weather is changing. Generator is also a concern, there needs to be other reliable people here that know how to run it in case the current operator is not available.

Follow the laws 



Review 

& 

Update 

By-Laws 

of the 

CSD

o   

Update 

of all 

Policies 

and 

Procedu

res

Conduct a 

Pros-Cons 

Analysis 

of 

annexatio

n options 

for 

propertie

s 

receiving 

services 

but not 

currently 

within the 

district 

boundari

es. 3 

homes 

Plus Big 

Lagoon 

Elementa

ry School

Compreh

ensive 

rate 

study- 

Prepare 

for future 

needs. 

(Propose

d to be 

done by 

RCAC)

o   

Potential 

for tiered 

pricing 

(higher 

prices 

charged 

after a 

set usage 

allowanc

e) 

o   

Emergency 

Response 

Plan- Who, 

What, 

Where, 

When 

o   

Emergency 

Operation

al Plan- 

What if 

the district 

cannot 

supply 

water? 

o   

Customer 

awareness 

training for 

developing 

their own 

emergency 

kits 

Written 

SOPs 

(Standard 

Operating 

Procedures) 

for all 

volunteer 

tasks

o   Water 

testing at 

home sites 

o   Web site 

maintenanc

e 

o   

Electronic 

meter 

reading 

o   

Accounting 

reports and 

filings 

Successi

on plan 

for 

water 

operato

r

Comprehens

ive drought 

awareness, 

training and 

operating 

plan

Create a 

comprehensiv

e Public 

Information 

system to 

include: 

o    

Emergency 

Alert System 

and 

procedures 

o    Customer 

/ Rate Payer 

â€œFacts to 

Knowâ€• 

about the Big 

Lagoon CSD 

and being a 

customer/resi

dent

o    Terms of 

use 

agreement 

Increase

d water 

storage 

capacity 

in order 

to:

o    Meet 

minimum 

fire flow 

requirem

ents

o    

Currently 

only an 

approxim

ate 2-day 

supply of 

emergen

cy 

storage 

Pursue 

drilling a 

backup 

well 

o    

Current 

backup 

well 

does not 

produce 

enough 

to supply 

needs 

o    

Potential

ly pursue 

alternate 

well sites- 

current 

site may 

not have 

the 

space 

Total 

water 

system 

assessm

ent and 

analysis 

to 

determi

ne:

o    

Vulnera

bilities 

of 

existing 

system

o    Long 

term 

repair 

and 

replace

ment 

Schedul

e 

MOU 

(Memora

ndum of 

Understa

nding) 

with 

property 

owner of 

existing 

well site 

property

Communi

cation 

with 

Green 

Diamond 

Resource 

Co. re: 

School 

property 

to 

potentiall

y develop 

MOU 

with 

GDRC for 

possible 

well site? 

Or 

regarding 

future of 

school 

property.

Replace

ment of 

existing 

above 

ground 

PVC line 

that 

services 

Big 

Lagoon 

School 

Develop 

Capital 

Improve

ment 

funding 

strategy 

plan 

outside 

of rate 

increases

o   

Pursue 

grants 

o   Loans 

ADMIN INFRA

4 7 5 1 6 2 8 3 4 3 1 2 6 7 5

1 5 3 6 7 8 4 2 1 5 4 6 7 2 3

6 4 8 5 1 2 7 4 3 1 6 7 5 7 7

1 7 3 4 6 2 8 5 1 2 3 4 6 7 5

1 7 3 4 6 2 8 5 1 2 3 4 6 7 5

7 6 3 5 4 2 8 1 4 1 5 2 3 7 6

3 8 1 7 2 4 6 5 3 2 1 4 5 7 6

7 2 1 3 6 5 8 4 1 2 3 7 4 5 6

8 6 7 1 4 1 8 5 1 1 1 5 1 1 1

2 3 6 1 5 4 8 7 1 5 2 4 7 6 3

1 7 8 4 2 3 5 6 1 2 3 6 7 5 4

2 3 4 1 6 4 7 8 1 2 3 4 7 6 5

1 7 3 4 6 2 8 5 3 2 1 4 6 7 5

1 7 3 4 6 2 8 5 3 2 1 4 6 7 5

2 8 1 6 5 3 7 4 2 3 1 4 6 7 5

7 8 4 2 3 1 6 7 1 2 3 4 7 5 6

2 8 1 6 5 3 7 4 2 3 1 4 6 7 5

8 7 3 2 4 1 5 6 2 3 4 5 6 7 1

5 8 4 1 3 2 7 6 1 5 3 2 6 7 4

4 7 8 1 5 2 3 6 2 4 3 1 5 6 7

6 5 7 1 3 2 8 4 1 2 3 7 6 4 5

3 8 2 1 4 5 6 7 2 6 1 4 5 3 7

1 5 4 3 6 7 8 2 1 6 3 4 5 2 7

3 8 2 6 4 3 6 5 1 2 3 4 5 7 6

6 4 5 3 7 1 8 2 4 2 6 3 7 1 5

Average 3.68 6.20 3.96 3.28 4.64 2.92 6.88 4.72 1.88 2.80 2.72 4.20 5.60 5.48 4.96 7 Surveys removed due to incorrect answer format

RANK 3 7 4 2 5 1 8 6 1 3 2 4 7 6 5 If data from the incorrect are removed.  No significant changes

MODE 1 7 3 1 6 2 8 5 1 2 3 4 6 7 5 Mode with the 7 surveys removed

Worksheet to remove the 7 surveys

Questions copied here again for convenience of viewing  as freezing the panes made the worksheet very small. 



Review 

& 

Update 

By-Laws 

of the 

CSD

o   

Update 

of all 

Policies 

and 

Procedu

res

Conduct a 

Pros-Cons 

Analysis 

of 

annexatio

n options 

for 

propertie

s 

receiving 

services 

but not 

currently 

within the 

district 

boundari

es. 3 

homes 

Plus Big 

Lagoon 

Elementa

ry School

Compreh

ensive 

rate 

study- 

Prepare 

for future 

needs. 

(Propose

d to be 

done by 

RCAC)

o   

Potential 

for tiered 

pricing 

(higher 

prices 

charged 

after a 

set usage 

allowanc

e) 

o   

Emergency 

Response 

Plan- Who, 

What, 

Where, 

When 

o   

Emergency 

Operation

al Plan- 

What if 

the district 

cannot 

supply 

water? 

o   

Customer 

awareness 

training for 

developing 

their own 

emergency 

kits 

Written 

SOPs 

(Standard 

Operating 

Procedures) 

for all 

volunteer 

tasks

o   Water 

testing at 

home sites 

o   Web site 

maintenanc

e 

o   

Electronic 

meter 

reading 

o   

Accounting 

reports and 

filings 

Successi

on plan 

for 

water 

operato

r

Comprehens

ive drought 

awareness, 

training and 

operating 

plan

Create a 

comprehensiv

e Public 

Information 

system to 

include: 

o    

Emergency 

Alert System 

and 

procedures 

o    Customer 

/ Rate Payer 

â€œFacts to 

Knowâ€• 

about the Big 

Lagoon CSD 

and being a 

customer/resi

dent

o    Terms of 

use 

agreement 

Increase

d water 

storage 

capacity 

in order 

to:

o    Meet 

minimum 

fire flow 

requirem

ents

o    

Currently 

only an 

approxim

ate 2-day 

supply of 

emergen

cy 

storage 

Pursue 

drilling a 

backup 

well 

o    

Current 

backup 

well 

does not 

produce 

enough 

to supply 

needs 

o    

Potential

ly pursue 

alternate 

well sites- 

current 

site may 

not have 

the 

space 

Total 

water 

system 

assessm

ent and 

analysis 

to 

determi

ne:

o    

Vulnera

bilities 

of 

existing 

system

o    Long 

term 

repair 

and 

replace

ment 

Schedul

e 

MOU 

(Memora

ndum of 

Understa

nding) 

with 

property 

owner of 

existing 

well site 

property

Communi

cation 

with 

Green 

Diamond 

Resource 

Co. re: 

School 

property 

to 

potentiall

y develop 

MOU 

with 

GDRC for 

possible 

well site? 

Or 

regarding 

future of 

school 

property.

Replace

ment of 

existing 

above 

ground 

PVC line 

that 

services 

Big 

Lagoon 

School 

Develop 

Capital 

Improve

ment 

funding 

strategy 

plan 

outside 

of rate 

increases

o   

Pursue 

grants 

o   Loans 

Worksheet to remove the 7 surveys



 

 

Water Shortage contingency Plan 

 

This Water Shortage Contingency Plan complies with California Water Code (CWC) Section 10632, which 

requires that every urban water supplier shall prepare and adopt a WSCP as part of its Urban Water 

Management Plan (UWMP). 

The provisions of the WSCP shall take effect upon a declaration of a water shortage made by a 

resolution of the Big Lagoon Community Services District Board of Directors (the Board). 

Recommendation for the implementation of the WSCP shall be brought to the Board of Directors 

whenever the Water Operator, upon engineering analysis of District water supplies or due to regulatory 

requirements, notices, or orders, finds and determines that a water shortage emergency exists or is 

imminent within the MCSD water service area. WSCP shall remain in effect for the duration of the water 

shortage set forth in the resolution, or until rescinded by the Board. 

The WSCP also describes BLCSD’s procedures for conducting an Annual Water Supply and Demand 

Assessment that is required by CWC Section 10632.1. 

BLCSD shall communicate with the public, and local, regional, and state government agencies during 

each water shortage stage to communicate the demand reduction actions required.  

Stage 1 (10% Reduction) - Voluntary Consideration; BLCSD will notify customers through mail stuffers, 

social media posts, and via the District website.  

Stage 2 (20% Reduction) – Voluntary Conservation: BLCSD will notify customers through mail stuffers, 

social media posts, via the District website.  

Stage 3 (30% Reduction) – Mandatory Conservation; BLCSD will notify customers, and local and state 

agencies through phone calls, email, mail stuffers, social media posts, via the District website. 

Stage 4 (40% Reduction) – Emergency Water Shortage; BLCSD will notify customers, and local and state 

agencies through phone calls, email, mail stuffers, social media posts and through media and news 

outlets.  

Stage 5 (50% Reduction) – Emergency Mandatory Rationing; BLCSD will notify customers, and local and 

state agencies through phone calls, email, mail stuffers, social media posts, via the District website, and 

through media and news outlets.  

Stage 6 (≥ 50% Reduction)– Critical Water Shortage Emergency Rationing; BLCSD will notify customers, 

and local and state agencies through phone calls, email, mail stuffers, social media posts, and through 

media and news outlets. 

The California Water Code contains two provisions for California water supplies related to water 

shortage contingency planning. California Water Code Section 350-359 provides the authority for a 

governing body to declare water shortage emergencies. Upon the declaration of a water shortage 

emergency, the local agency is provided with broad powers to implement and enforce regulations and 

restrictions for managing water shortage conditions 

























































































































































 

         P.O. Box 847  Trinidad, CA 95570 

 

Dear Customer, BLCSD is in the process of updating it’s service address data base.  We kindly ask that 

you fill out this form and return it either with your bill payment or via email to: 

boardsecretary@biglagooncsd.org.  The information will only be used for official BLCSD business and 

communications and providing any or all of it is voluntary.  The primary reason for doing this is it has 

been several years since this has been updated and we want to make sure that our communications are 

reaching the appropriate people and that in the event of some type of BLCSD emergency we have the 

most up to date way to contact those we serve.   Thank you 

 

Name(s):__________________________________________________________ 

 

Service Address:  ______________________________________ 

 

Main email:___________________________________________ 

Secondary email: ______________________________________ 

Other email:__________________________________________ 

 

Main Phone:  _______________ Secondary phone_______________ 

Other Phone: _______________  Fax:______________________ ___ 

 

Billing Address (if different then service address): 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Any Other contact information you wish to provide: 

___________________________________________________________________ 

mailto:boardsecretary@biglagooncsd.org






Badger Radio Read Meter Software Progress 
 

As most of you know, our new radio read meters have been successfully installed   
The next step to implementing the radio read technology as of our January 20, 
2023 board meeting was to create the database of addresses and associated 
meter information in a format that could be loaded into Badger’s Beacon AMA 
cloud-based software.  I’m happy to report that this step is completed.   
 
On March 23rd, several BLCSD staff will attend a training with Dan Giliam from 
Badger meter on how to properly upload information to the tablet for reading and 
download the information from it to pass on to the Treasurer for billing.  Great 
care has been taken to ensure that the information Beacon will export will 
interface with existing methods used by BLCSD for billing to create a smooth 
transition. 
 
I would like to extend a sincere thank you to Gus, Louise, Val, John Morgan and 
Hooven staff, Dana and all others involved in this project for maintaining 
impeccable records and providing information that I could not have created the 
database without.  This would have been a much more daunting task without your 
great work and help. 
 
If all goes according to plan, our May meter reading will be conducted with our 
new technology. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Joey Blaine 
BLCSD Volunteer Staff Member 



 

BLCSD Surplus Asset Disposal Policy  

 

PURPOSE 

The Big Lagoon Community Services  District (the District) shall establish an administrative policy 

for the disposition of surplus personal property, equipment, and materials. This policy does not 

apply to real property and exists to ensure the receipt of all revenues from the disposal of surplus 

personal property, equipment, and materials. 

 

POLICY 

The Chair  (or his/her designee) shall develop a “Surplus Supplies and Equipment List” (“personal 

property” or “property”) which is surplus. Prior to disposition, the Board shall be provided with, 

and approve the “List.” 

 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

• SURPLUS SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT LIST - List of property which has been 

determined “surplus” by the Chair. 

 

• SURPLUS – Non “real property” has little or no remaining useful life for the District. 

 

 

MEANS OF PROPERTY DISPOSAL AND ACCOUNTING 

The property may be disposed of as follows: 

The first effort shall be to dispose of that property in a manner which is most likely to generate 

the greatest return to the District. Staff will determine which method of disposal is best. Such 

methods of disposal include but are not limited to the following: 



1. Sale on the open market. The General Manager shall cause to be published at least 

three days before the sale, in a newspaper circulated throughout the District, and/or by 

posting on any District website, a notice of sale setting forth a general description of the 

personal property to be sold, and the day, time and location of the sale. The terms of all 

such sales shall be  check or money order in the amount of the full purchase price. The 

District also may conduct a public auction in this manner. The fees for this sale shall be 

deducted from the proceeds of the sale.. 

2. Donation. The Chair  may, when in his/her judgment the sale or auction of surplus 

personal property is infeasible or will result in minimal return to the District, cause such 

surplus personal property to be donated to any other governmental organization or non-

profit group or corporation exempt from federal taxes pursuant to Internal Revenue Code 

Section 501(c) (3) located within Humboldt or Del Norte County or serving the District.  

3. Selling for Scrap. Surplus property may be sold as scrap if the Chair deems that the 

value of its parts exceeds the value of the surplus property as a whole. 

5. No Value Item. Where the Chair determines that property is surplus and of minimal or 

no value to the District or the cost of disposal of such property would exceed the recovery 

value, the Chair  shall dispose of the same in such a manner he or she deems appropriate 

and in the best interest of the District. 

           Accounting for the disposition of personal property, equipment, and materials: 

When so authorized to sell, donate, recycle, and scrap District property, the person  directed to 

undertake such activity shall: 

1. Remit the entire proceeds from any such activity to the BLCSD Treasurer. 

2. Complete receipt documentation form for the disposal of surplus personal property, 

equipment and materials and submit with proceeds, if any, to the BLCSD Treasurer. 

The Chair & or Treasurer shall: 

1. Make adjustments to the Surplus Supplies and Equipment List 

2. Deposit all proceeds from the disposition of surplus personal property, equipment 

and materials into the General Fund. 

3. Authorize the delivery of the surplus property. 

 


